From: Andrew James
To: Paddock, Jeffrey J - DNR
Cc: Joe Ramcheck
Subject: Additional Information - NAR determination - Stetsonville Qil, Clark station, 115 STH 13, Stetsonville, WI
Date: Tuesday, April 12, 2022 12:37:32 PM
Attachments: Figure 1.pdf
Figure 2 soil.pdf
Table 1.pdf
Figure 3 GW.pdf
Table 2.pdf

CAUTION: This email originated from outside the organization.

Mr. Paddock,

Endeavor Environmental Services Inc. (Endeavor) is providing an update based on conversations with
DNR regarding the request for No Action Required determination related to the 2022 Phase |l
Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) at the Stetsonville Qil, Clark station located at 115 STH 13, in
the Village of Stetsonville, Taylor county, Wisconsin.

The property is the location of a closed BRRTS LUST case, Stetsonville Qil, (BRRTS # 03-61-000357).
Looking at the attached figure 1, you will see the detailed map of the closed site. The current site
configuration is similar to the configuration on figure 1, with the onsite building located to the west
of the pump island canopy which is located immediately adjacent to STH 13. Residual soil and
groundwater (GW) impacts for the closed case are extensive (as shown on the attached figure 2 and
figure 3, maps) and encompass the GP-4 and GP-5 locations of Endeavor’s 2022 Phase Il ESA. Historic
residual concentrations of soil contamination in the vicinity of the 2022 ESA performed by Endeavor
are represented by historic borings TB-4, TB-8, TB-11, TB-14 & MW-2, and are shown on the
attached Table 1. When comparing the location of these borings to the location of GP-4 and GP-5
from Endeavor’s 2022 ESA, the contaminant concentrations and constituents are similar. You will
note the relative low concentrations of benzene in comparison to the heavier volatile substances.
This was not only a characteristic of the historic release but also suggests that a new release (as a
potential source for elevated benzene concentrations) has not occurred.

GW contamination for the closed case in the vicinity of Endeavor’s 2022 ESA is represented by
historic wells SMW-2 and SMW-3, which are upgradient and downgradient wells (respectively) to
Endeavor’s current groundwater sample locations GP-4 and GP-5. The GW concentrations of PVOCs
in GP-4 and GP-5 show similar elevated compounds to that of the historic soil contamination; the
heavier volatiles are elevated in relation to benzene concentrations. Furthermore, the GW results of
Endeavor’s ESA are similar to the concentrations observed in SMW-2 and SMW-3 of the closed case.
The last 10 years of GW sampling of the closed case report benzene from approximately 2,000 ppb
to no detect in the upgradient well SMW-2. SMW-2 generally reported concentrations of benzene
around 400 to 800 ppb and is also upgradient of the source area for the closed case. SMW-3 was
downgradient of the historic release as well as downgradient of Endeavor’s 2022 ESA. The
concentrations reported from SMW-3 are similar to the concentrations reported in GP-4. In general
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Groundwater &malytical Results Summary

Stetsonville Qiff Company LUST Site BRRTS# 03-61-000357

Well SMW-14
PVC Elevatiom= 100.93 (feet)
Water Depth 1,2-Dibro- 1,2-Dich- Ethyl Trimethyl- | Xylene
- Ewvation | to Water | Lead Benzene | moelhane (EDS) | loroshtane (DCA) | Benzene | MTBE Naphthalene | Toluene | benzenes {Total)
Bale (im foet) | {infee) { (ppb} {ppb} {ppb) {ppb) {ppb) | {ppb) (ppb) ({ppb} {ppb} (ppb}
05/10/94 [N NM <3.0 1.6 <0 <1.0 <{.0 <1.0 <1.0 <1.0 10.5 20
03/07/95 NM NM NA 2.8 <1.0 <1.0 <1.0 <1.0 1.4 1.1 16.3 17
05/16/95 ° NM NM A 1.8 NA <1.0 <1.0 <1.0 <0 - <1.0 19.3 6.9
08/09/95 WM NM NA 6.1 NA <1.0 1.2 <1.0 NA <1.0 16.3 35
12/06/98 NM NM NA 14 NA NA 3.8 <1.0 NA <10 | 22 <3.0
02114197 NM NM NA 1.2 NA NA <0.22 0.19 NA <0.20 <0.51 <0.23
05/22/97 WM NM NA 41 NA NA 26 <0.32 NA 1.9 7.38 44
05/22/98 NM NM NA 8.6 NA NA <0.30 <0.16 NA <0.20 <0.51 <0.30
09/08/98 NM NM NA 0.87 NA NA <Q.22 <0.16 NA <0,20 <0.51 <0.23
06H12/00 WM NM NA 134 NA NA 7.56 | <0.500 NA <500 | <10.00 <6.00
10/25/00 NM NM NA 20,6 NA NA <5,00 2.61 NA <5.00 <10.00 <5.00
11414181 NM NM NA 26 NA NA 28 <0.48 NA 2.9 _36.93 7.3
05/07/04 87.44 11.64 DRY
117272008 1 99,17 9.95 07 | 135 | <0.48 I 2.24 | 40 | <062 94 071 | 157 2.66
21712007 . DRY
5f1/2007 9180 | 932 <07 | 078 | <0.49 1" 2.37 [ 141 1 <652 <18 <046 | 34 - 045
8/20/20G7 ORY ]
4/15/2008 92.41 8.71 <0.7 <0.24 <0.41 <0.76 0.48 <0.7 <1.8 <0.39 2.6 0.90-1.80
7152008 | 93.24 7.69 <Q.7 6.8 <0.78 1.31 20 <0.7 109 1.18 39.93 22.6
18/14/2008 | 90.62 10.31 <0.7 <0.24 <0.76 <041 1.24 <0.7 <1.8 <0.35 | 2.28-2.61 <1.67
1720/2009 UNDER A DUMPSTER .
4/15/2009 $2.01 8.92 <0.7 <0.41 + <0.52 <0.43 <087 <0.5 <1.7 <0.51 { 08/09/01 | 0.60-2.20
7113/2008 92.16 B.77 <0.7 35 <0.52 0.66 5.8 <0.5 5.5 <0.561 | 19.1-20.6 4.81
10/14/20091 91.74 9.19 <0.7 <0.41 <0.52 <0.43 <0.87 <0.5 <17 . <0.51 <2.6 <2.13
1/19/2010 | 89.49 11.44 <0.7 <0.41 <0.52 <043 <0.87 <0.5 <17 <0.51 <2.6 <2.13
10/18/2010]  93.81 7.12 <0.7 3.6 <0.95 1.26 16.6 <0.25 <2.4 <0.72 23.05 5.45
Waell SMW-2
PVC Elevation = 10%.02 {feet)
Water | Depih 7,2-Dibro- 1,2-Dich- Ethyl Trimetyl- | Xylena
Elevation { to Water Lead Benzene | moethane (EDB).} laroehtane {DCA} | Benzene | MTBE | Naphihalene | Toluene | benzenes {Totaf}
Dale (infeet) | (infeet) [ (ppb) (ppb) {ppb) {ppb) (ppb} 1 {ppb) {ppb) (ppb) {pph) {ppb)
05/10/94 NM NM <3.0 810 <100 86 <10 <10 <10 <10 <20 C <30 -
03/07/95 NM NM NA 64 <1.0 55 1 2.1 <10 2 2 4.7
05/16/95 NM NM NA 1300 NA 83 21 <20 NA <20 <40 <60
08/09/95 NM NM NA 1260 NA 10 17 13 NA <10 <20 <10
12/06/96 NM NM NA 2000 NA NA 30 <i¢ NA <10 <20 <30
02/14/97 NM NM NA 1300 NA NA 27 13 NA 5.2 <1.02 4.8
05/22{97 NM NM NA 1200 NA NA 24 <1.8 NA 7.7 45 15 |
08/21/97 NM NM NA 380 NA NA 20 <39 NA 5.9 4.4 13
06/22/08 NM NM NA 1700 NA NA <27 <20 NA 9.9 4.4 10
09/08/98 M NM NA 780 NA NA [ <0.80 NA 5.3 3.0 7
12/07/98 NM N NA 970 NA NA 14 38 NA 12 <204 <28
06/12/00 N MM NA 510 NA NA 5,18 24.0 NA <5.00 <10.00 <500
10/25/00 NM NM NA 2200 NA NA 9.84 48.5 NA 5.45 <40.00 5.19
05/25/01 NM Nid NA 88 NA NA 12 71 NA 13 24 16
11/14/01 NM NM NA 2500 NA NA 21 59 NA <8.2 <12 | <14
08/97104 85.94 15.08 <1.5 860 <5.6 <3.6 <5.4 <6.1 47 <6.7 <18.0 <28.3
11/2/2006 88.12 12.80 <0.7 750 <49 9.0 5.3 8.4 <22 5.9 <15.9 <14.2
21712007 NM NM <0.7 500 <4.9 . <4.5 <38 <5.2 <18 <4.8 <157 <g.9
5112007 $9.03 11.89 <0.7 305 <4.9 15.7 <3.8 <5.2 <18 <4.8 <15.7 <9.9
8/20/2007 | 86.99 14.03 <0.7 490 <4,9 5.9 <3.8 <5.2 <18 <4 6 <15,7 <9.9
4115/2008 | 89.09 11.93 <0.7 450 214 <7.8 <3.5 <7 <18 <3.9 <74 <16.7
7/15/2008 | 60.90 i0.12 <0.7 590 <7.6 235 5.1 <7 22.4 4.6 <74 <18.7
10/14/2008 |  88.42 12.60 <0.7 790 <7.6 <41 <3.5 <7 31.4 4.8 <7.4 <16.7
1720/2009 |~ 85.99 15.03 <0.7 490 <7.6 10.9 <3.5 <7 <18 <3.9 <74 <16.7
4158/2008 | 87.49 13.53 <07 840 <5.2 36 <8.7 <§ 34 6 <28 <213
711372009 | 8981 11.21 2.8 10.7 <0.52 <0.43 <0.87 <0.5 <i.7 <0.51 <2.6 <2.13
1071472009 89.80 11,62 <Q.7 <0.41 <0.52 <043 <0.87 <0.5 <17 <0.51 <2.B <213
111912010 89.68 11.34 <0.7 400 <2.6 19.3 <4.35 2.5 <8.5 <2.55 <13 <10.68
10/18/2010 91.69 8.33 <Q.7 25.1 <0.85 1.06 5.1 <0.25 <24 1.56 1.08-2.35f 7.4-7.92
Note: Bold type indicates an ES exceedance, lafics indicates a PAL t NS = not led, NM = Not Measured

Q = Analyte detected above laboratory method delection limit but below practical quantitation limit.

Environmental Consulting, Fuel System Design, Inslaliation and Service

METCO






Groundwater Analytical Results Summary
Stetsonville Gif Company LUST Site BRRTS# 03-61-000357

Well SMW-3
PVC Elevation = 98.16 {feat)
Water Depth 1,2-Dibro- 1,2-Dich~ Ethyl Trimethyi- | Xylene
Elevation § to Water | Lead | Benzene | moethane (EDB) { loroehtane (DCA) | Benzene | MTBE Naphthalene | Toluene | benzenes | {Total)
Date (nfeet) | (infest) | (ppb) (ppby) {ppb) {opb) (opb) | {ppb) (ppb) {ppb) (ppb) (pph})
05/10/94 NM NM 25 2000 <500 460 200 <50 200 170 850 620
03/07/95 N NM NA 1100 <50 . 210 140 93 160 110 450 430
06/16/35 NM NM NA 1100 -NA 190 150 82 150 150 490 520
08/09/95 NM NM NA 1300 NA 340 110 100 NA 12G 390 470
02M14/97 1~ NM NM NA 730 NA NA 190 34 NA 150 2238 700
0522197 NM NM NA 480 NA NA §0 <1.6 NA 160 320 970
08/21/97 NM NM NA 440 NA NA 70 <0.80 NA 150 620 1300
["05/22198 NM NM NA 1400 NA NA 180 <17 NA 430 800 1500
09/08/98 NM Niv NA 900 NA NA 11 <23 NA 4.4 1.85 4.8
12/07/98 NM NM NA 2000 NA NA 110 <21 NA 59 280 310
06/12/00 NM NM NA 19890 NA NA 251 6.96 153 8.59 87.3 87.7
05/25/01 NM NM NA 1400 NA NA 290 <9.2 180 550 730 1700
11/14/01 NM -~ NM NA 1600 NA NA 220 <92 220 <9.2 830 1300
09/07/04 88.22 10.21 41 2200 25 140 400 <12 220 730 720 1900
11/2/2006 89.28 9.15 24.40 1950 <24.5 42 420 <26 390 600 1089 2290
2/7/2007 88.04 10.39 9.0 1930 <24.56 <225 430 <26 256 780 830 2270
5/1/2007 FREE PRODUCT -
812072007 NM N <0.7 | <047 ] <0.49 <0.45 [ <038 | <0.52 | <1.8 <0468 | <1.57 | <099
4115/2008 | "87.22 11.21 NOT SAMPLED FREE PRODUCT PRESENT
7r18/2008 91.15 7.01 NOT SAMPLED FREE PRODUCT PRESENT
10/14/2008 | 88.20 9.96 5.1 1600 <38 <20.5 380 <35 410 500 858 2300
1/20/2009 86.75 11.41 3.5 158 <38 <20.5 166 «35 108 242 494 1510
4/15/2009 86.63 11.53 5.6 800 <5.2 <4.3 450 <5 252 - 450 995 2620
7113/2009 90.38 7.78 224 650 <52 <4.3 136 <5 114 207 721 1450
10/14/2009 |  89.19 8.97 104 630 <5,2 <4.3 285 <5 187 284 816 1920
1/19/2010 88.08 10.08 <0.7 760 <5.2 32 250 <5 190G 211 838 790
10718720101 g1.72 6.44 59 550 <18 12 107 <5 146 137 845 1500
Welt SMW-4 10/18/10 98,52
PVC Elevation = 99.68 {faet)
Water Depih 1,2-Dibro- 1,2-Digh- Ethyl Trimethyl-{  Xylene
Elevation | to Water Lead Benzene | moethane (EDB) | icroehtane (DCA) [ Benzene | MTBE | Naphthalene | Toluene | benzenes {Total)
Date {nfeat) | {infeet) | (ppb) {ppb) (pph) (pph) (ppb) | (pphb) (ppb} (ppb) (ppb) (epb)
05/10/94 NM NM <3.0 i.2 <10 <1.0 <10 1.3 <1.0 <1.0 <2.0 <3.0
03/07/95 NM NM NA <1.0 <1.0 <1.0 <1.0 <1.0 <10 <1.0 <2.0 <3.0
05/16/95 NM NM NA <1.0 NA <1.0 <1.0 <{.0 <1.0 <1.g <24 <3.0
08/09/95 NM NM NA <1.0 NA <1.0 <10 <1.0 <1.0 <1.0 <2.0 <3.0
12/068/96 [ NM NM NA <0.50 NA NA <1.0 <1.0 NA <1.0 <2.0 <3.0
05/22/97 N NM NA <0.13 NA NA <0.22 <0.16 NA <0.20 <0.51 <C.23
08/19/97 NM N - NA .31 NA NA <0.22 <0.186 NA <0.20 0.38 0.26
05/22/58 N N NA <0.13 NA NA <0.22 <0.16 NA <3.20 <0.51 <0.23
05/08/98 NM Nivi NA <0.13 NA NA <(0.22 <Q.16 NA <(.20 <0.51 <0.23
12/07/98 NM Nh NA 0,53 NA NA <0.43 <0.141 NA 0.79 <1.00 <1.4
06/12/00 NM NM NA <0.500 NA NA <500 | <0.500 NA <5.00 <10.00 <5.00
10/25/00 NM NM NA <0.500 NA NA <5.00 <0.500 NA <5.00 <10.00 <b,00
11/14/0¢ NM NM NA <0.21 NA NA <0.22 <0.46 . NA <0.41 <0.60 <0.69
09/07/04 90.92 9.03 <1.5 <0.41 <0.56 <038 <0.54 4.8 <0.74 <0.67 <1.8 <283
11/2/2008 80.74 .21 <0.7 <0.47 <0.49 <0.72 <0.38 <0.52 <2.2 <0.59 <1.59 <$.42
2/712007 89.90 10.05 <0.7 <0.47 - <049 <0.45 <0.38 <0.52 <1.8 <0.46 <1.57 <099
5{1/2007 91.33 8.62 <0.7 <0.47 <0.48 <0.456 <0.38 <0.52 <1.8 <0.46 <1.57 1.35
872072007 | 89.85 10,10 <0.7 3.4 <0.49 <0.45 <0.38 <0.52 <18 <0.46 <1.57 0.43
411572008 90.13 9.82 <0.7 0.64 <{.76 <0.41 <0.35 <07 <1.8 <0.39 <1.55 <1.67
71572008 93.46 6.22 <0.7 0.58 <0.76 <0.41 <0.35 <0.7 <1.8 0.44 <0.74 <1.67 .
10/14/2008 | 90.78 8.8% <0.7 1.93 <0.76 <0.41 <0.35 <0.7 <1.8 <0.3% <0.74 <1.67
1720/2009 88.77 10.91 <0.7 0.28 <0.76 <0.41 <0.35 <0.7 <1.3 1.48 <0.74 <1.67
4/15/2009 89.61 10.07 <0.7 <0.41 <0.52 <0.43 <0.87 <0.5 <1.7 <0.51 <2.6 <2,13
/1312009 92.82 6.88 <0.7 <0.41 <0.52 <0.43 <0.87 <0.5 <1.7 <0.51 <2.6 <2.13
10/14/2009 92.24 7.44 0.7 2.54 <0.52 <0.43 <0.87 <0.5 <1.7 <0.51 <26 <2.13
118/2010 90.17 8.51 93 <Q.41 <0.52 <0,43 <0.87 <0.5 <1.7 <0.51 <2.6 <2.13
10/18/2010 93.67 5.85 <Q.7 <0.38 <{0.95 <0.38 <0.55 <0.25 <24 <0.72 <1.20 <1.62

Note: Bold type indicatss an ES exceedance,

italics indicates a PAL excaedance. NS = not sampled, NM = Not Measurad

Q = Analyte detected above laboratory mathod detection limit but below practical quantitation linvii.
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benzene concentrations in SMW-3 are around 1,000 — 2,000 ppb. Elevated xylene is present in the
GP-4 GW sample. There may be several factors contributing to elevated xylene in this sample. GP-4
and GP-5 were both temporary monitoring wells. Temporary well results may differ from permanent
2” monitoring wells. Additionally, soil from the historic TB-11 sample location of the closed site is in
the immediate vicinity of GP-4 and GP-5. Soil from this location was not excavated and contained
xylene concentrations of 31,300 ppb. GW table fluctuations could inundate the residual soil
contamination thereby mobilizing these compounds over time. Finally, xylene is a heavy volatile and
therefore tends to persist over time as other lighter volatiles degrade. Xylene’s relative stability in
comparison to other more volatile compounds, as well as the presence of a soil source in the
immediate vicinity could also contribute to the concentrations of xylene we see in the GP-4 GW
sample.

Therefore, it is the opinion of Endeavor that the contamination identified in Endeavor’s Phase Il ESA
represents contamination from the closed LUST case Stetsonville Qil, (BRRTS # 03-61-000357) based
on the location and concentrations of historic contamination in comparison to the concentrations
and locations of GP-4 and GP-5. Endeavor’s Phase Il ESA did not report exceedances outside of the
areas of known contamination nor did the concentrations indicate that a new release has likely
occurred. Endeavor respectfully recommends this for a No Action Required determination.

Thank you for your consideration.

Sincerely,
Andy J

Andy James

Endeavor Environmental Services, Inc.
2280-B Salscheider Court

Green Bay, WI 54313

Office: (920) 437-2997

Fax: (920) 437-3066

E-mail: ajames@endeavorenv.com



